
124

14
REFERENCES

Agin, Brent and Sharon Perkins.  Healthy Aging for Dummies.   Hoboken, NJ: 
Wiley Publishing, Inc., 2008.

Alicandri, Elizabeth.  U.S. Department of Transportation, Email 
Correspondence, 2 September 2009. 

American Automobile Association (AAA).  “Sharing a Drive to Protect 
Motorists.” <http://www.seniordrivers.org/pdf/carfit.pdf> (18 
October 2009).

Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008. “ Section 902 
Definition of the Term Disability - Notice Concerning The Americans 
With Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008,” 1999. <http://www.
eeoc.gov/policy/docs/902cm.html> (3 January 2011).

American Planning Association.  “Complete Streets,” 2009. <http://www.
planning.org/research/streets/index.htm> (11 November 2009).

ArcGIS 9.2.  “Desktop help.” <http://webhelp.esri.com/arcgisdesktop/9.2/ 
 index.cfm?TopicName=Natural_breaks_(Jenks)> 

(6 July 2009).
Architectural Barriers Act (ABA) of 1968.  <http://www.access-board.gov/ 
 about/laws/aba.htm> (17 December 2009).
Audirac, Ivonne.  “Accessing Transit as Universal Design.”  Journal of Planning 

Literature August 2008: Volume 23 Number 1. <http://jpl.sagepub.
com/cgi/content/abstract/23/1/4> (4 September 2009).    

“Avoiding Near-Misses in Crosswalks, Southeast Regional Maintenance 
Center Mayport, Florida.” <http://www.safetycenter.navy.mil/media/
traffic5100/pdf/preventing.pdf> (Accessed 11/9/09).

Bailey, Linda.  Aging Americans: Stranded Without Options, April 2004.  
<http://www.transact.org/library/reports_html/seniors/aging.pdf> (3 
September 2009).

Black, Linda.  New York City Department for the Aging, Interview 7 July 2009, 
Email Correspondence, 8 July 2009.  

Brain Injury Association of America.  “Brain Injury: The Golden Years-
Understanding and Preventing Adult Brain Injury.”   <www.biausa.
org/publications/goldenyears2.pdf> (26 June 2009).

Brown, Linda; Wainwright, Scott and Kevin Sylvester.  “Traffic Control 
Devices: The Same Message No Matter Where You Travel.”  ITE 
Journal, March 2008.  

Bude, Christine.  “What Happens As We Age?”  Associated Content, August 
10, 2007. <http://www.associatedcontent.com/article/338338/what_
happens_as_we_age.html?cat=52> 
(2 June 2009).

Buntin, John.  “Seniors and the City.”  Governing June 2009.  < http://www. 
 governing.com/article/seniors-and-city> (3 July 2009). 
CarFit.  “Frequently Asked Questions.” <http://www.car-fit.org/carfit/FAQ> 

(15 October 2009).  
Carlson, Paul J. and Greg Schertz.  “New MUTCD Minimum Sign 

Retroreflectivity Requirements.”  ITE Journal, April 2008.  
Center for Universal Design.  “About Universal Design.”  <http://www.design.

ncsu.edu/cud/about_ud/about_ud.htm> (10 October 2009).     
Central Intelligence Agency (CIA).  “The World Factbook 2009.” < https://


























M
O

BILITY IN
ITIATIVES FO

R A
N

 AG
IN

G
 PO

PU
LATIO

N
 - A

 Scan of Current Practices

125

www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/index.html> 
(12 December 2009).

City of New York.  Mayor’s Office. “Mayor Bloomberg and Taxi Commissioner 
Yassky Announce Three Finalists to Be the New, Exclusive New York 
City Taxicab.” City of New York. City of New York, 15 Nov. 2010. 
<www.nyc.gov>. (17 Nov. 2010)

City of New York.  Mayor’s Office.  “Mayor Bloomberg, Speaker Quinn and 
the New York Academy of Medicine Unveil Blueprint to Enhance 
City’s Livability for Older New Yorkers.”  City of New York. City of New 
York, 25 Aug 2009 <www.nyc.gov>. (17 Nov. 2010).

City Parks Foundation.  “City Parks Senior Fitness Programs.”  <http://www.
cityparksfoundation.org/index1.aspx?BD=17019> (31 January 2010).  

CNN Money.com.  “The Future of Car Safety.” <http://money.cnn.com/
galleries/2009/moneymag/0911/gallery.car_safety.moneymag/
index.html> (15 November 2009).

Cox, Kathy.  Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority, Telephone 
Interview, 19 February 2010. 

Cox, Paul.  Department for Transport, Email Correspondence, 4 September  
 2009.  
Crossrail.  “Welcome to Crossrail.” <http://www.crossrail.co.uk> (5 February  
 2010).   
Crowson, Darren.  Transport for London, Email Correspondence, 5 October 

2009 and 2 February 2010.   
Davis, Robert and Anthony DeBarros.  “Older, Dangerous Drivers a Growing 

Problem.” USA Today, 2 May 2007   <http://www.usatoday.com/
news/nation/2007-05-02-older-drivers-usat1a_N.htm> (22 June 
2009).

DeNucci, Joseph A.  Independent State Auditors Report on Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority Administration of the Ride Program July 
2004 to June 2008, December 2009.  

Department for Transport.  “Rail Vehicle Accessibility  Regulations: 
Exemption Orders Annual Report 2008.” <http://www.dft.gov.uk/
transportforyou/access/rail/vehicles/pubs/rva/rvarannualreport08.
pdf> (31 January 2010).

Dill, Jennifer.  Travel Choices at TODs: Survey Results from Portland’s Eastside, 
10 December 10 2007. <http://web.pdx.edu/~jdill/Files/Dill_
EastsideTOD_final_report_2007.pdf> (2 October 2008). 

DiPaolo, Thomas.  Mass Highway, Email Correspondence, 23 September   
 2009.  
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  “Building Healthy Communities 

for Active Aging Awards 2008.”  <http://www.epa.gov/aging/bhc/
awards/2008/index.html#content> (21 April 2009). 

Federal Transit Administration.  “Code of Federal Regulations Title 49 Section 
37.53.”  <http://www.fta.dot.gov/civilrights/ada/civil_rights_3906.
html> (5 November 2009). 

Federal Transit Administration.  “New Starts Fact Sheet.”  <http://www.fta.
dot.gov/planning/newstarts/planning_environment_2607.html> (10 
January 2010).  

Finkelstein, Ruth.  The New York Academy of Medicine, Interview, 8 June 
2009.  

Freund, Katherine and James McKnight.  “Independent Transportation 
Network: Alternative for the Elderly.” Transportation Research Board, 
March 1997. <http://onlinepubs.trb.org/onlinepubs/archive/studies/
idea/finalreports/transit/Transit9_Final_Report.pdf> (3 December 
2009).

Frumkin, Howard et al.  Urban Sprawl and Public Health: Designing, Planning, 
and Building for Healthy Communities.  Washington D.C.: Island 
Press, 2004.   

Giuliano, Genevieve, et.al.  “Travel Patterns of the Elderly,” Met Trans Project, 
School of Policy, Planning, & Development, University of Southern 
California, July 2003.  <http://www.metrans.org/research/final/00-
08_Final.pdf> (12 September 2009).       

Godfrey, David.  Kirkland Public Works Department, Telephone Interview, 27 
October 2009.

Godfrey, David and Tony Mazzella.  “Kirkland’s Experience with In-Pavement 
Flashing Lights at Crosswalks,” (paper presented at the ITE/IMSA 
Annual Meeting, 8 February 1999) <http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/
depart/Public_Works/Transportation___Streets/Kirkland_s_
Experience_with_In-pavement_Flashing_Crosswalks.htm> (October 
2009).  

Gov Track.  <http://www.govtrack.us/congress/bill.xpd?bill=s111-584> (4  
 September 2009).
Governor’s Traffic Safety Advisory Commission (GTSAC).  Michigan Senior  
 Mobility Action Plan 2009-2012, January 2009. 

<http://www.michigan.gov/documents/MichiganSeniorMobilityActio 
 nPlanfinal_162718_7.pdf> (3 September 2009). 
Greater London Authority, Transport Committee.  Braking Point: 20 mph 

Speed Limits in London, April 2009. <http://www.london.gov.uk/
assembly/reports/transport/braking-point-20mph.pdf> (12 August 
2009).   

Green, Donna.  City of Portland Bureau of Transportation, Email 
Correspondence, 14 April 2011.

Greene, Kelly.  “12 People Who are Changing Your Retirement.”   Wall Street 
Journal, 16 February 2008. <http://online.wsj.com/public/article_
print/SB120283234025062481.html> (3 September 2009). 


























126

Grover, Judy.  “NORC Program Senior Services Restore Communities.”  The 
Cooperator, The Co-op and Condo Monthly, May 2000. <http://
cooperator.com/articles/532/1/NORC-Program/Page1.html>  (13 
September 2009).

Grundy, Chris et al.  20 Mph Zones and Road Safety in London: A Report to 
the London Road Safety Unit, 2008. <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/
downloads/20-mph-zones-and-road-safety-in-london.pdf> (4 
September 2009).       

Harrington, Candy.  “Tokyo Olympic Bid Highlights Universal Design,” 
8 April 2009. <http://barrierfreetravels.com/serendipity/
archives/427-Tokyo-Olympic-Bid-Highlights-Universal-Design.html>                         
(18 October 2009).

Harrington, Carol Joyce.  Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority, Phone 
Interview, 11 February 2010.

Hester, Jean.  City of Portland, Telephone Interview, 2 September 2009. 
Hevesi, Alan G.  “Letter to Mr. Edwin Mendez-Santiago.” 28 September 2004.  

<http://www.osc.state.ny.us/audits/allaudits/093004/04f11.pdf> (5 
September 2009).

Hirsch, Larry.  New York City Transit, Phone Interview, 12 August 2009.  
Holbrook, Lisa.  Portland Independent Transportation Network, Telephone 

Conversation, 15 December 2009.
Hood, Clifton.  722 Miles: The Building of the Subways and How they 

Transformed New York, Centennial Edition. New York, Baltimore: 
John Hopkins University Press, 2004.

Insurance Institute for Highway Safety.  Licensing Renewal Provisions for 
Older Drivers, August 2009.
<http://www.iihs.org/laws/olderdrivers.aspx> (20 August 2009).

International Longevity Center Global Alliance (ILC).  Global Aging Report, 
Threats to Longevity A Call to Action, 2009 http://www.ilcjapan.
org/alliance/doc/Global_Aging_Report_090212.pdf  (29 September 
2009).  

ITS Japan.  “Nine Areas of ITS.” <http://www.its-jp.org/english/about_e/> (21  
 December 2009).
Jirus, Tim.  “Avoiding Near-Misses in Crosswalks.” <http://www.safetycenter.

navy.mil/media/traffic5100/pdf/preventing.pdf>               (9 
November 2009).

Kaminer, Ariel.  “A Godsend, Except When It’s Not.” The New York 
Times, February 2010. <http://www.nytimes.com/2010/02/07/
nyregion/07critic.html?emc=eta1> (6 February 2010).    

Kaplan, Lee.  “Maine’s Independent Transportation Network Could be a 
Model Program for Minnesota Seniors.” Gray Times, 23 January 
2009.  <http://www.graytimes.com/articles/senior-transportation-

alternatives-for-minnesota.php> (6 August 2009). 
Kaucic, Michelle.  New York City Department of Transportation, Email 

Correspondence,  2 June 2009.  
King, Rod.  “Portsmouth: Changing the Way We Share Our Streets,” 

September 2009.  <http://20splentyforus.org.uk/portsmouth.htm> 
(11 November 2009).     

Kugel, Jason.  TAPCO, Phone Interview, 19 October 2009.
Laplante, John and Barbara McCann.  “Complete Streets: We Can Get There  
 from Here.”  ITE Journal, May 2008. 
Lariviere, Kim.   Michigan Department of Transportation, Email 

Correspondence, 30 July 2009.
Lubman, Ilona.  New York City Department of Transportation, Phone   
 Interview, 26 May 2009.
Lynott, Jana et al.  Planning Complete Streets for an Aging America, May 

2009.  <http://assets.aarp.org/rgcenter/il/2009_02_streets_5.pdf > 
(10 November 2009).  

London Assembly.  Braking Point: 20 Mph Speed Limits in London, April 2009.  
<http://www.20splentyforus.org.uk/UsefulReports/braking-point-
20mph.pdf> (5 September 2009). 

Mace, Ronald L.  “Last Speech: A Perspective on Universal Design,” 
19 June 1998. <http://www.design.ncsu.edu/cud/about_us/
usronmacespeech.htm> (16 September 2009).

Malek, Mansour.  Crosswalk Enhancement Comparison Study, 7 May 
2001. <http://www.lightguardsystems.com/PDFs/studies/
SanJoseOverheadVSIRWLStudy.pdf> (8 September 2009).

Matich, Marc.  City of Rochester Hills, Telephone Interview, 29 September 
2009.

Marcello, Kate.  Case File Number LU 09-137349 DZM Two New Signs 
on Russellville Park West Building, August 2009.  <http://www.
portlandonline.com/bds/index.cfm?a=257572&c=46574> (8 October 
2009).   

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  Chief Operating Officer, 2009. 
<http://www.mbta.com/uploadedfiles/About_the_T/Financials/
FY09%20Budget%20Book_Section_7.pdf> (3 February 2010).  

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  “ADA Settlement Notice 
Summary.”                       < <http://
www.mbta.com/about_the_mbta/accessibility/?id=9468> (1 
February 2010). 

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  “Reduced Fares.”  <http://
www.mbta.com/fares_and_passes/reduced_fare_programs/> (1 
February 2010).  



M
O

BILITY IN
ITIATIVES FO

R A
N

 AG
IN

G
 PO

PU
LATIO

N
 - A

 Scan of Current Practices

127

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  “MBTA Accessibility Lawsuit 
Update.” <http://bostoncil.org/documents/MBTA-newsletter-Fall-
2007.pdf> (3 February 2010).  

Mass Bike.  “Bike Law Update.” <http://www.massbike.org/bikelaw/mass. 
 htm> (12 December 2009).   
Mayor’s Office/Center for Inclusive Design and Environmental Access.  

Universal Design New York, 2001.  <http://www.ap.buffalo.edu/idea/
udny/index.htm> (2 December 2009).  

Mayor’s Office.  Age Friendly NYC-Enhancing Our City’s Livability for Older 
New Yorkers, August 25, 2009. <http://www.agefriendlynyc.org/
documents/NYC_Age_Friendly_report.pdf> (26 August 26 2009).     

Mayor’s Office.  PlaNYC 2030, April 2007. <http://www.nyc.gov/html/
planyc2030/html/plan/transportation.shtml> (21 July2009).  

McNeill, David.  Tokyo Offers Free Pizza to Lure Pensioners from Their Cars, 
April 2009. <http://www.independent.co.uk/news/world/asia/tokyo-
offers-free-pizza-to-lure-pensioners-from-their-cars-812197.html> (3 
August 2009).

Metro.  “Urban Growth Boundary.”  <http://www.metro-region.org/index. 
 cfm/go/by.web/id/277> (31 August 2009).
Metro.  “Transit-Oriented Development Program Process and Examples 

Presentation,” January 2008.  <http://library.oregonmetro.gov/files/
todprogramprocessandexamples.pdf> (31 August 2009).   

Metro Magazine.  “MBTA Crime Drops to Lowest Levels in 30 Years,” 
27 January 2010.  <http://www.metro-magazine.com/News/
Story/2010/01/MBTA-crime-drops-to-lowest-levels-in-30-years.aspx> 
(5 February 2010). 

Metropolitan Police Department.  “Traffic Safety,” April 2009. < http://www.
keishicho.metro.tokyo.jp/kotu/hennou/hennou.htm/> (28 July 
2009).  

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  2030 Regional Strategic 
Review: Presentation to the Permanent Citizens Advisory Committee, 
18 June 2007) <http://www.mta.info/mta/planning/rsr/rsr_061807_
pcac.pdf> (8 July 2009).  

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “About NYC Transit.” <http:// 
 www.mta.info/nyct/facts/ffintro.htm/> (29 June 2009).  
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “A New Option for Access-A-

Ride Users.” < http://www.mta.info/news/stories/?story=161> (10 
Dec 2010).

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “Guide to Accessible Transit: 
Accessible Stations in the MTA Network.”  <http://www.mta.info/
mta/ada/stations.htm> (11 June 2009).    

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “How to Ride The Bus.” < 
http://www.mta.info/nyct/bus/howto_bus.htm> (16 Dec 2010). 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “The MTA Network.”  <http://
www.mta.info/mta/network.htm#agnyct/> 
(26 June 2009).  

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “MTA Guide to Accessible 
Transit.”  <http://www.mta.info/mta/ada/index.html/> (8 July 2009).

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “Ramping Up Accessibility 
While Lowering Costs.” <http://www.mta.info/news/
stories/?story=89> (17 Dec 2010).

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  “Second Avenue Subway: 
Project Description.”  <http://www.mta.info/capconstr/sas/sas_
description.htm#phasing> (4 February 2010).  

Miller, Rock and George Dore.  “In-Pavement Flashing Crosswalks: State of 
the Art,” (paper presented at the Second Urban Street Symposium, 
28-30 July, 2003). <http://www.urbanstreet.info/2nd_sym_
proceedings/Volume%202/Miller.pdf> (5 February 2010). 

Millward, David.  “Cameras to Enforce 20 mph Speed Limit,” October 2007.  
<http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/uknews/1566347/Cameras-to-
enforce-20mph-speed-limit.html> (6 August 2009). 

Ministry of Children, Equality, and Social Inclusion.  “Persons with 
Disabilities.” <http://www.regjeringen.no/en/dep/bld/Topics/
disabled-people.html?id=987> (3 February 2010).  

Ministry of the Environment.  Introduction to the Priority Area: Planning 
for All, October 1998.  <http://www.regjeringen.no/en/archive/
Bondeviks-1st-Government/md/Veiledninger-og-brosjyrer/1998/T-
1253-Planning-for-all-2.html?id=87457 > (2 September 2009).  

Ministry of the Environment.  The Government Action Plan for Increased 
Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities, July 2005.  <http://www.
universell-utforming.miljo.no/file_upload/hptuu_kortversjon_
en.pdf> (2 September 2009).  

Ministry of the Environment.  Programme of Action for Universal Design, 
September 2002.  <http://www.universaldesign.environment.no/
artikkel.shtml?id=16> (2 September 20099).  

Ministry of the Environment.  Universal Design as a Municipal Strategy: 
Experience and Results from the Pilot Municipality Project 2005-
2008, August 2009.  <http://www.universal-design.environment.no/
artikkel.shtml?id=39> (19 November 2009).

Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs and Ministry of the Environment.  The 
Government Action Plan for Increased Accessibility for Persons with 
Disabilities: Plan for Universal Design in Key Areas of Society, June 
2005.  <http://www.universell-utforming.miljo.no/file_upload/
hptuu_kortversjon_en.pdf> (2 September 2009).  


























128

Mitsunori, Sakurai and Matsuhashi Masamichi.  “Pedestrian Navigation with 
InfoSign.”  NEC Technical Journal Vol. 3 No. 1, 2008. <http://www.
nec.co.jp/techrep/en/journal/g08/n01/080110.html> (3 September 
2009).  

Nasar, Jack and Jennifer Evans-Crowley et al.  Universal Design and 
Visitability: From Accessibility to Zoning, 2007.  <https://kb.osu.edu/
dspace/bitstream/1811/24833/2/UniversalDesign&Visitability2007.
pdf> (12 October 2009).  

National Center on Senior Transportation.  “Tips and Facts.”  
<http://seniortransportation.easterseals.com/site/
PageServer?pagename=NCST2_transit_seniortips> (3 March 2010). 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA).  “Traffic Safety Facts 
2007 Data-Older Populations,” 2007. <www.nhtsa.gov> (21 May 
2008). 

National Research Council (U.S.) Transportation Research Board.  
Transportation in an Aging Society:  A Decade of Experience: 
Technical Papers and Reports from a Conference:  Conference 
Proceedings 27.  Transportation Research Board:  Washington, DC, 
November 1999.  

Neuman, William.  “Taking the Guesswork Out of Which Subway Escalators 
are Broken.” The New York Times, 1 August 2007.  <http://www.
nytimes.com/2007/08/01/nyregion/01mta.html> (2009).  

Neuwirth, Robert.  New York’s Housing Underground: A Refuge and Resource, 

March 2008. <http://prattcenter.net/sites/default/files/publications/

Housing%20Underground.pdf> (15 October 2009).   
New York City Department for the Aging.  “Promoting Positive Aging,”   
 January 2008.
New York City Department of City Planning.  “About Us – New York City 

Department of City Planning.” <http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/html/
subcats/about.shtml>. 15 Nov 2010.

New York City Department of City Planning.  “Residential Parking Study.” 
<http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/pdf/transportation/residential_
parking.pdf>. 17 Dec 2010.

New York City Department of City Planning.  New York City Population 
Projections by Age/Sex & Borough 2000-2030, December 2006.  
<http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/pdf/census/projections_report.pdf> 
(5 May 2009). 

New York City Department of Design and Construction. Active Design 
Guidelines, 2010. <http://ddcftp.nyc.gov/adg/> (30 November 2010).

New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  “City Health 
information:  Preventing Falls in Older Adults in the Community,” 

August 2010.     
New York City Department of Transportation.  School Safety Engineering 

Project:  General Mitigation Measures-Final Report, April 
2004.  <http://www.nyc.gov/html/dot/downloads/pdf/
schoolsafetymitigation.pdf> (5 February 2010).    

New York City Department of Transportation.  “Ninth Avenue Bicycle Avenue 
Facility and Complete Street Extension.” <http://www.nyc.gov/html/
dot/html/about/currentproj.shtml> (10 January 2010). 

New York City Department of Transportation.  Reduced School Speed Limit: 
Pilot Study- Parts I & II, June 2008. <http://www.nyc.gov/html/
dot/downloads/pdf/Reduced_School_Speed_Limit_Study.pdf> (5 
February 2010).  

New York City Department of Transportation.  “Pedestrians & Sidewalks Safe 
Streets for Seniors.”  <http://www.nyc.gov/html/dot/html/sidewalks/
safeseniors.shtml> (24 July 2009).  

New York City Department of Transportation.  Sustainable Streets: Strategic 
Plan for the New York City Department of Transportation 2008 and 
Beyond, April 2008.  

New York City Department of Transportation.  Street Design Manual, May  
 2009.   
New York City Department of Transportation.  “Safe Streets for Seniors: 

Addressing Senior Pedestrian Focus Areas in New York City,” 
April 2009.  <http://www.nyc.gov/html/dot//downloads/pdf/
safestreetsforseniors.pdf> (2009).

New York City Department of Parks and Recreation.  “Frequently Asked 
Questions.” <http://www.nycgovparks.org/sub_faqs/faq.html> (10 
January 2010).  

New York City Taxi and Limousine Commission.  “Notice of Promulgation 
of Rules.” <http://www.nyc.gov/html/tlc/downloads/pdf/newly_
passed_rules_accessible.pdf> (9 November 2009).

New York City Transit.  Final Key Station Plan, July 1992.  
New York City Transit.  Key Stations Report 1st Quarter, March 2009.
New York City Transit.  “100 Key Stations List,” May 2009.  
New York Metropolitan Transportation Council.  “Letter from the Executive 

Director,” June 2009. <http://www.nymtc.org/rtp/documents/
APPENDIX/A7_NYMTC_RTP_CHSTP.pdf> (29 June 2009).

New York Metropolitan Transportation Council.   “About NYMTC.” <http://
www.nymtc.org/> (26 June 2009).   

New York Metropolitan Transportation Council.  A Coordinated Public Transit-
Human Services Transportation Plan for the NYMTC Area, June 2009. 
<http://www.nymtc.org/project/PTHSP/CPT-HS/NYC/NYMTC%20
coord%20plan%20NYC%20CH00%20COV-TOC.pdf> (1 July 2009).   



M
O

BILITY IN
ITIATIVES FO

R A
N

 AG
IN

G
 PO

PU
LATIO

N
 - A

 Scan of Current Practices

129

New York State Department of Motor Vehicles.  “Photo Licenses and ID 
cards.”  <http://www.nysdmv.com/broch/c-33.htm/>         (23 July 
2009).

New York State Department of Motor Vehicles.  “Driver License Renewal, 
Frequently Asked Questions.”  <http://www.nydmv.state.ny.us/
licrenew/lrnFAQ.htm#Eligibility> (6 August 2009).

New York State Department of Transportation.  “Special Transportation 
Services for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities: 
Section 5310 Grant Program FFY 2009 Application Manual.”  
<https://www.nysdot.gov/divisions/policy-and-strategy/transit-
bureau/public-trans-respository/2009%205310%20Application-
MANUAL_0.pdf> (10 October 2009).

New York State Office for the Aging (NYSOFA).  “Aging in New York – About  
 NYSOFA,” < http://www.aging.ny.gov/NYSOFA/AboutNYSOFA.cfm >  
 (14 November 2010).
New York State Office for the Aging (NYSOFA). Aging in New York – Executive 
             Summary, 2007-2011. < http://www.aging.ny.gov/NYSOFA/4YearPlan/     
FourYearPlan-ExecutiveSummary.pdf > (14 November 2010).
New York State Office for the Aging (NYSOFA).  “Federal Funding and 

Policy Priorities for the first Session of the 111th Congress,” 
2009.  < http://www.aging.ny.gov/NYSOFA/4YearPlan/
FundingPriorities111Congress.cfm> (15 July 2009).   

New York State Office for the Aging (NYSOFA). Livable New York, October 
2010.

Niesz, Helga.  Independent Transportation Network: Senior Transportation 
Public/Private Partnership, February 2005. <http://www.cga.
ct.gov/2005/rpt/2005-r-0090.htm> (1 November 2009). 

Nishida, Yasushi.  National Research Institute of Police Science, Email 
Correspondence, 14 September 2009.  

Office of Public Sector Information. “Part 1. Disability.”  <http://www.opsi.
gov.uk/acts/acts1995/ukpga_19950050_en_2#pt1-l1g1> (2 February 
2010).  

Oka, Kunihiko and Shinsuke Setoshita.  “Nationwide Introduction of the Free 
Mobility System,” 2005.  <http://www.nilim.go.jp/lab/gdg/research/
ronbun/239.pdf> (21 December 2009).

Patrick, Deval.  “MA Smart Growth/Smart Energy ToolKit.” <http://www.
mass.gov/?pageID=eoeeamodulechunk&L=1&L0=Home&sid=Eo
eea&b=terminalcontent&f=eea_sgse_toolkit&csid=Eoeea>   (12 
November 2009).

Pawluk, Yuri.  Mayor’s Office, Telephone Interview, 18 May 2009.  
Pedestrian and Bicycle Information Center.  “Complete Streets Laws and 

Ordinances.”   <http://www.walkinginfo.org/library/details.
cfm?id=3968> (4 September 2009).

Permanent Citizens Advisory Committee to the MTA.  Welcome Aboard: 
Accessibility at the MTA, October 2008.  <http://www.pcac.org/wp-
content/reports/2008_ADA_accessibility.pdf> (8 June 2009).  

Pompa, Frank.  “As the Nation Ages, Elderly Drivers Present a Greater Risks 
on the Road.” USA Today, May 2007. <http://www.usatoday.com/
news/nation/2007-05-02-older-drivers-usat1a_N.htm> (22 June 
2009).

Portland Bureau of Planning.  Gateway Regional Center: Report to Metro, 
January 2005. <http://www.portlandonline.com/bps/index.
cfm?a=86205&c=38978> (14 November 2009).  

Portland Office of Transportation. “Senior Strolls.” <http://www.
portlandonline.com/Transportation/index.cfm?a=88107&c=39300>   
(3 September 2009).

Portland Parks and Recreation.  “Portland Parks & Recreation and the 
Portland Bureau of Transportation Receive National Award for 
Active Aging.” http://www.sustainableportland.org/parks/index.
cfm?a=237516&c=50048 (3 September 2009).

Ranck, Fred.  Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices Team, Email 
Correspondence, 29 September 2009.  

Regional Plan Association (RPA). Building Sustainable Communities in the NY-
CT Metropolitan Region,  October 2010. <http://www.rpa.org/pdf/
SustainableCommunities.pdf> (29 November 2010).

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 502). <http://www.access-board.gov/
about/laws/rehab-act.htm> (17 December 2009).

Ricability.  “Trains and Trams.” <http://www.ricability.org.uk/consumer_
reports/mobility_reports/wheels_within_wheels/trains_trams/> (1 
February 2010).

Rodwin, Victor G. et al.  Growing Older in World Cities: New York, London, 
Paris, and Tokyo.  Nashville: Vanderbilt University Press, 2006.  

Roe, Matthew.  New York City Department of Transportation, Email 
Correspondence, 4 February 2010.

Rosenbloom, Sandra.  “Implications for the Mobility Needs of Older 
Americans: Implications for Transportation Reauthorization.” 
The Brookings Institution, July 2003.  <http://www.brookings.
edu/reports/2003/07transportation_rosenbloom.aspx>            (2 
September 2009).  

Ruechel, Summer and William C. Mann.  Self-Regulation of Driving 
by Older Persons, 2005. <http://driving.phhp.ufl.edu/
publications/2323911012005.pdf> (11 January 2010).

Sakurai Mistsunori and Matsuhashi Masamich.  “Pedestrian Navigation With 
InfoSign.” NEC Technical Journal Vol. 3 No.1, 2008. <http://www.


























130

nec.co.jp/techrep/en/journal/g08/n01/080110.pdf> (10 December 
2009).

Scarlett, Paul.  “Program Guide: Accessory Dwelling Units.” September 2007.  
<http://www.portlandonline.com/bds/index.cfm?a=68689> (27 
August 2009).  

Simpson, James.  “Keynote Address,” Good to Go: Transit Options for Older 
Adults- Summary Report, 26 September 2006.  <http://www.utrc2.
org/events/assets/nyu-seniors2006.pdf> (27 August 2009).  

Social Security Online.  “The Full Retirement Age is Increasing.”  <http://  
 www.ssa.gov/pubs/ageincrease.htm> (5 November 2009).
Statistics Norway.  “Town and Country,” 2002.  < http://www.ssb.no/english/

about_ssb/thisisstatisticsnorway.pdf/>                          (13 September 
2009).  

Steele, Meganne.  Metro, Telephone Interview, 29 September 2009.  
Stephens, Robert and Helen Kwah.  “Critical Factors in the Successful 

Utilization of Senior Center Meals,” January 2007. <http://www.nyc.
gov/html/dfta/downloads/pdf/trend_utilization_report_2007.pdf> (3 
September 2009).  

Stevenson, Karen.  “History of Long Term Care,” March 2006.  <http://www.
elderweb.com> (29 April 2009).

Straight, Audrey.  AARP Community Transportation Survey, February 1998.  
 <www.aarp.org> (28 September 2009).  
Streets Wiki.  “Flashing Crosswalks,” 10 August 2008, <http://www.

livablestreets.com/streetswiki/flashing-crosswalks> (15 September 
2009).

Tollefsen, Morten.  “Universally Designed Norway by 2025.” <http://medialt.
no/news/en-US/universally-designed-norway-by-2025/609.aspx> (15 
October 2009). 

Traffic and Parking Control Co. Inc. (TAPCO).  “LED Crosswalks Signs Enhance 
Traffic Safety at Naval Station Mayport.” <http://www.blinkersign.
com/press.html#> (9 November 2009).  

Translink.  “Access Transit,” May 2007.  <http://www.translink.ca/~/media/
Documents/Rider%20Info/Access%20Transit/2007%20Summary%20
Materials/Access%20Transit%20Brochure%20workshop%20
findings%20and%20recommendation.ashx> (14 October 2009).

Transport for London.  Business Plan 2009/10-2017/18. <http://www.tfl.gov.
uk/assets/downloads/corporate/tfl-business-plan-2009.pdf> (15 
January 2010).

Transport for London.  “Capital Call.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/   
 gettingaround/1195.aspx> (5 October 2009).
Transport for London.  “Dial-A-Ride.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/   
 gettingaround/1197.aspx> (5 October 2009).

Transport for London.  “Docklands Light Railway.”  <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/
corporate/modesoftransport/1530.aspx> (14 October 2009).   

Transport for London.  “Getting Around London-Your Guide to Accessibility.” 
<http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/Getting_around_London.
pdf>(31 January 2010).  

Transport for London.  London’s Road Safety Plan, November 2001.  <http://
www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/Londons-road-safety-plan.pdf> 
(20 October 2009).  

Transport for London.  “Step-free Access.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/
assets/downloads/corporate/tfl-investment-programme-london-
underground.pdf> (5 January 2010).

Transport for London.  “Taxicard.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/   
 gettingaround/1197.aspx> (5 October 2009).
Transport for London.  “Tramlink User Guide.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/

downloads/tramlink-user-guide.pdf>                             (3 February 
2010). 

Transport for London.  “Transport for London Crossrail Investment Program.” 
<http://www.tfl.gov.uk/assets/downloads/corporate/tfl-investment-
programme-crossrail.pdf> (5 January 2010).

Tranport for London. “Tube.” <http://www.tfl.gov.uk/gettingaround/  
 transportaccessibility/1169.aspx> (5 January 2010).  
Transportation Alternatives.  “Candidate Survey 2009: Mike Bloomberg.”  

<http://tacandidatesurvey.org/2009m/286> (1 January 2010).  
Transportation Alternatives. Terminal Velocity: New York City’ Speeding 

Epidemic, February 2009. <http://transalt.org/files/newsroom/
reports/2009/terminal_velocity.pdf> (10 January 2010).

Transportation Alternatives.  Safe Routes for Seniors, June 2009.  <http://
www.transalt.org/files/newsroom/reports/2009/Safe_Routes_for_
Seniors.pdf> (13 August 2009). 

TranSystems Corp. and Planners Collaborative.   Evaluation of MBTA Para-
transit and Accessible Fixed Route Transit Services Final Report, 24 
August 2007.  

TriMet.  Community Building Sourcebook, Land Use and Transportation 
Initiatives in Portland, Oregon, August 2005.  <http://www.
ulisacramento.org/documents/tod/5.Project%20Profiles/PP2.pdf> (3 
September 2009). 

TriMet.  “East Side MAX Blue Line: the Banfield Light Rail Project.”  <http://
trimet.org/pdfs/history/railfactsheet-banfield.pdf>           (8 October 
2009).

TriMet.  “Honored Citizen Fare.” <http://trimet.org/fares/honoredcitizen. 
 htm> (9 October 2009).
United Cerebral Palsy of New York.  “The Americans with Disabilities 

Act.”   <http://www.ucpnyc.org/advoc/disabilitiesact.cfm>         (17 



M
O

BILITY IN
ITIATIVES FO

R A
N

 AG
IN

G
 PO

PU
LATIO

N
 - A

 Scan of Current Practices

131

December 2009).   
United Hospital Fund.  “NORC Blueprint.” <http://www.norcblueprint.org/

about> (7 August 2009).   
United Spinal Association.  “Our Timeline.” < http://www.unitedspinal.org/

publications/action/united-spinal-timeline/>  (5 September 2009).
United States Census Bureau.  “65+ in the United States. Current Population 

Reports 1996.” 23-190.
United States Census Bureau.  “Census 2000.” <www.census.gov> (6 June 

2009).
United States Census Bureau.  “American Community Survey 2005-2007.” 

<www.census.gov> (6 June 2009).
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Accessory 

Dwelling Units: Case Study, June 2008. <http://www.huduser.org/
Publications/PDF/adu.pdf> (5 August 2009).

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). HUDNo.10-
242/HUD and DOT Award $68 Million to Create Sustainable Livable 
Communities, October 2010. <http://portal.hud.gov/portal/page/
portal/HUD/press/press_releases_media_advisories/2010>  (29 
November 2010).

U.S.  Department of Transportation.  “Maintaining Traffic Sign Retroflectivity,” 
April 2007.  <http://www.tfhrc.gov/safety/pubs/07042/07042.pdf> 
(11 November 2009). 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  “Active Aging.” <http://www.epa.gov/ 
 aging/bhc/awards/2008/#portland> (10 June 2009).  
Vision PDX.  Portland 2030: A Vision for the Future, February 2008.  <http://

www.planning.org/awards/2009/pdf/Portland2030.pdf> (10 
November 2009).   

VPG LLC.  “Mobility Reinvented Introducing the MV-1.”  <http://www.  
 vpgautos.com/media/VPG-073.pdf> (2 August 2009).   
Walker, Blair S.  “Busing Older Adults, New York Style.”  AARP Bulletin, 

October 2009. <http://bulletin.aarp.org/yourworld/gettingaround/
articles/busing_older_adults_new_york_style.html> (21 October 
2009). 

Walker, Richard.  Urban Audit III: London and other Large European Cities, 
2009. <http://www.london.gov.uk/archive/gla/publications/
factsandfigures/DMAG-briefing-2009-12.pdf> (31 January 2010). 

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA).  “Metro History.” 
<http://www.wmata.com/about_metro> (28 September 2009). 

Weber, David and Lisa J. Mollner, et al.  Maintaining Safe Mobility in an Aging 
Society.  CRC Press:  Boca Raton, 2009.

World Health Organization (WHO).  Active Ageing:  A Policy Framework, 

April 2009. <http://whqlibdoc.who.int/hq/2002/who_nmh_
nph_02.8.pdf>.

XE.  “Universal Currency Converter.” <http://www.xe.com/ucc/> (27 August 
2009). 

  

  


